
 Bid Number: GEM/2022/B/2861345 
Date: 03-02-2023 

 

Prebid Queries Responses 
Custom Bid for Services - RFP for Selection of Designing and Enhancement agency for 

website operation for 1 year 
 
Agency 1 
 

S.No. Query Response 

1 In the Pre-Qualification Criteria 
Point Number 4 a mandatory 
condition is listed for 
showcasing past similar works 
of a certain value for large 
scale websites owned by 
Government (Center /state 
/ministry /department/ 
organization/ PSU) or private 
companies. Please clarify the 
following 2 points on this 
particular criteria: 
 
- If there is any relaxation with 
regards to the overall billing we 
have done for such 
organizations or private 
companies. For instance can 
we still be eligible if we have 
done billing close to INR 1 Cr 
for such an organization in the 
last 3 years. Please confirm. 
 
- In case of private companies 
please confirm if we can 
include work done for 
companies with large overseas 
presence and very less 
business presence in the 
Indian Market. 

For the bidder to be eligible under past experience 
he/she should have either: 
 

● implemented 1 similar work (in line with scope 
of work) with project value not less than 3.5 Cr 
in the last 3 years as on the last date of bid 
submission 
 
OR 
 

● implemented 2 similar work (in line with scope 
of work) with project value not less than 3 Cr 
in the last 3 years as on the last date of bid 
submission.  
 
OR  
 

● implemented 3 similar work (in line with scope 
of work) with project value not less than 2.5 Cr 
in the last 3 years as on the last date of bid 
submission. 
 

Projects will be considered as valid as long as they 
have a registered office in India and the project has 
been carried out in India 

2 Please clarify if this will be a 
Fixed-Cost Engagement or a 
Time & Material / Retainership 
Engagement? Also, if this is to 
be considered as a Fixed-Cost 
Engagement please confirm if 

1. The engagement is Time & Material based. 
2. No change 

 
 
 



the Qualification or Cut-Off 
Marks Criteria will be amended 
as currently it contains marks 
to be allocated on the basis of 
the quality of the Developer 
Profiles we will share with your 
team. 

3 We are considering that for 
now Mobile Apps will not be a 
part of the project scope. 
Please confirm. 

Mobile app development is part of scope of work but 
not part of immediate delivery plan. 
 
Invest India may request the selected bidder to work 
on mobile app development incase need arises in the 
future. 

4 Please clarify if only the Project 
Manager will be needed to 
work most of the time On-Site 
as part of this engagement and 
the rest of the team members 
will be working remotely only. 

Travel to Invest India office required for Project 
Manager on a regular/daily basis. 
 
For the rest of the team (especially designers, 
analytics, & SEO experts), travel to the Invest India 
office is required on a need basis. 

5 We are assuming that we will 
be required to provide one site 
security audit per year. Please 
confirm. 

Yes, 1 security audit per year is required. 

6 We are assuming that we will 
only be providing the Cloud 
and Server related services 
and billing and subscription 
costs for the same will be 
borne by the Invest India 
Team. Please confirm. 

All billing and subscription costs for AWS will be borne 
by the Invest India Team. 
 
The selected bidder shall provide 
DevOps/deployment/utilization of services on AWS. 

7 We are not considering adding 
any 3rd Party Licensing Costs 
in our proposal as we are 
assuming this will be borne by 
the Invest India Team based 
on actuals. Please confirm. 

The selected bidder shall not be permitted to charge 
any separate fee for utilizing or deploying any 
software/tools/ licenses (VB, MS Office, JIRA etc.) 
obtained from any third party or any proprietary 
software in performance of the services under the 
project. 
 
However, for any new functionality implementation 
that may require procurement of 3rd party 
tools/services such as ‘HubSpot’, etc. The selected 
bidder is expected to recommend such tools/services. 
Basis evaluation of the required tool/service by Invest 
India, the procurement shall be directly done by Invest 
India. 

 



Agency 2 
 

S.No. Query Response 

1 We are a startup company 
participating in the recently 
released tender for Selection 
of Designing and 
Enhancement agency for 
website operation for 1 year 
Tender no: 
GEM/2022/B/2861345. We 
understand that the tender 
requires us to have a minimum 
of 200 employees, but as a 
startup, this would be an 
extremely challenging task to 
fulfill. We request you to kindly 
consider our request for 
exemption on manpower 
strength in this particular 
tender. We believe that our 
innovative solutions and 
technology-driven approach 
can bring a lot of value to the 
project, and we would love to 
be able to participate. 

No Change 

 
 
Agency 3 
 

S.No. Query Response 

1 Pre-Qualification Checklist, 
Point No.4 
 

1. What is the meaning of 
"large scale websites"? 
Does it pertain to size 
or value of the 
Website? 
 

2. Project Value of 3.5 Cr 
asked for a 1 Website is 
very huge. There may 
not be many vendors 
with such 
experience/credentials. 

1. A website is said to be large-scale when it meets 
certain characteristics such as high number of 
visitors, a high number of transactions if it is an online 
shop, or a large amount of published data. 
 
2. No change 

 
 



Also, the time period of 
3 years is very short for  
any big website 
involving development 
& maintenance. 
 

Hence, we request you to 
please reduce the value of the 
Project Order to 1 Cr for Single 
Work Order, sunsequently, 80 
Lacs for 2 Work Orders & 50 
lacs for 3 Work Orders in last 5 
years. 

2 Techical Evaluation Criterion, 
Point No. 2 
 
As per the present clause, any 
vendor to score full marks in 
this clause has to submit 6 or 
above websites Work Orders 
of 3.5 Cr each in last 3 years, 
which is very difficult. 
 
We strongly recommend & 
suggest that the values of the 
Websites should not exceed 1 
Cr. Also, the time duration of 3 
years should be increased to 5 
years, because not many 
vendors would be having such 
experience in last 3 years. 

Please refer to corrigendum. 

3 Techical Evaluation Criterion, 
Point No. 3 
 
Certifications have been 
equally evaluated in this 
clause, any ISO 9--1 company 
would also score as good as 
CMMI level 3 company. 
 
We strongly suggest that in PQ 
& TQ, CMMI Level 3 can be 
basic requirement with 
additional marks for CMMI 
Level 5 & other certifications 
like ISO 27001 & ISO 9001. 

No change 

4 Detailed Scope of Work, The engagement is Time & Material based.  



General 
 
From the given Scope, its not 
clear whether this engagement 
would be Time & Material basis 
or Project Mode, as there  are 
no Project Miestones defined 
for delivery & payments. 
Please clarify. 

5 Detailed Scope of Work, Point 
8 
 
Please state how many 
Security Audits & STQC 
(GIGW) Certfications would be 
required during the Project 
period. And who would be 
bearing the cost for the same? 

The selected bidder shall be responsible and carry out 
internal security audits and improvements. 
 
3rd party security audit shall be arranged by Invest 
India. Any improvements that need to be incorporated 
as per the audit shall be part of selected bidders 
scope of work/services. 

6 Detailed Scope of Work, Point 
10, 12 & 17 
 
From the given scope under 
these points, its not clear 
whether vendor has to himself 
provide the hosting 
environment or it would be 
provided by Invest India. 
 
Also, if vendor is not 
responsible for hosting, why is 
is required for vendor to make 
the Payments to Cloud or 
SAAS service provider. 

All billing and subscription costs for AWS will be borne 
by the Invest India Team. 
 
The selected bidder shall provide 
DevOps/deployment/utilization of services on AWS. 

7 Detailed Scope of Work, Point 
20 
 
Who would procure SSL? How 
many SSL required during 
Project duration? 

The selected bidder shall ensure that the Web Portal 
is hosted using secured SSL Certificate (min 256-bit 
encryption) with extended validation during the entire 
contract period. 
 
Invest India will bear the cost of procuring the SSL 
certificate. 

8 Detailed Scope of 
Work,Tentative schedule for 
completing the assignment  
 
As per this clause, some 
Websies need only handover 

For now, only handover of the projects is required. 
 
Since it is a T&M model, we would allocate resources 
to the project (other than Invest India) only if any 
urgent need arises. 



to be taken. What if any 
development is also 
required/new scope is 
discovered? Who would bear 
the cost & would Invest India 
agree for efforts added & 
payments thereof,  assuming 
that the vendor has to work in 
Project delivery mode. 

9 Payment Terms, Point No.1 
 
This clause is totally against 
the work implementation 
method as mentioned in the 
scope.How & Who would 
decide the quantum of work 
done? 

The engagement is Time & Material based. Please 
refer to Point 1 & 3 of ‘Payment Terms’. 
 
The quantum of work shall be decided and 
communicated by the Invest India team to the 
selected bidder. 

10 Payment Terms, Point No.2 
 
This clause refers to typical 
Time & Material engagement. 
Please clarify. 

The engagement is Time & Material based. Please 
refer to Point 1 & 3 of ‘Payment Terms’. 
 

11 Payment Terms , Point No 3 
 
We at Silver Touch also 
believe & pratice Optimization 
of resources, but if it’s a Project 
Mode Engagement, then the 
payment terms may need to 
undergo some changes, in 
order to define certain 
milestones of the project. With 
perogative of utilization in the 
hands of Invest India, it wont 
be possible for any vendor to 
participate in this tender. 
Hence, requesting please 
delete or modify this clause to 
suit masses. 

The engagement is Time & Material based. Please 
refer to Point 1 & 3 of ‘Payment Terms’. 
 
The deployment of resources shall be a finalised 
basis consultation with Invest India. 
 

 
 
Agency 4 
 

S.No. Query Response 



1 Tech Stack: Custom CMS built 
on Drupal 8.8.1 (the CMS is also 
mobile friendly) 
 
We uderstand that the existing 
sites are based on Drupal. Could 
you please confirm if the bidders 
can propose other Digital 
Experience Platforms/ CMS 
platforms to build other websites 
and portals on other DXP/ CMS 
technologies other than Drupal? 

Yes, bidders can propose other digital experience 
platforms/cms platforms other than Drupal. 
 
However, a complete plan to migrate to new 
technology along with parallel delivery of items listed 
‘Tentative Delivery Schedule’ (especially first 3 
months) is expected as part of the technical proposal. 
 
No additional cost shall be borne by Invest India for 
migration of content management systems. Further, 
Invest India reserves discretion to accept/reject 
proposed such migration activities. 

2 First 6 Months 
 
During the redesign and 
redevelopment of Pgaes and 
Websites, considering the scope 
of workflow based automation, 
microsites, blogs, articles, 
recommendations we would 
request to consider Digital 
Experience Platforms (DXP) as 
DXPs comes with in-built 
capabilities of CMS, Worlflows, 
Digital Asset Management, 
Enterprise Search, Blogs, Wikis, 
Discussion Forums, low code 
capabilities, etc 

Yes, bidders can propose other digital experience 
platforms/cms platforms other than Drupal. 
 
However, a complete plan to migrate to new 
technology along with parallel delivery of items listed 
‘Tentative Delivery Schedule’ (especially first 3 
months) is expected as part of the technical proposal. 
 
No additional cost shall be borne by Invest India for 
migration of content management systems. Further, 
Invest India reserves discretion to accept/reject 
proposed such migration activities. 
 

3 Key Functionalities & Features 
(existing): Drupal upgrades to 
8.8.1 were carried out to ensure 
enhanced security and 
enable backend compatibility 
with new addons and features. 
 
As a suggestion, we would 
suggest to allow other CMS 
platforms as well to be proposed 
by bidders and evaluate them 
based on the features and ease 
of adoption. This will not only 
reduce Invest India's 
dependency on a single platform 
but will also enable you to 
explore the lates technology 
breakthroughs that are provided 
by other OEMs. 

Yes, bidders can propose other digital experience 
platforms/cms platforms other than Drupal. 
 
However, a complete plan to migrate to new 
technology along with parallel delivery of items listed 
‘Tentative Delivery Schedule’ (especially first 3 
months) is expected as part of the technical proposal. 
 
No additional cost shall be borne by Invest India for 
migration of content management systems. Further, 
Invest India reserves discretion to accept/reject 
proposed such migration activities. 
 



4 Push notifications integration 
a. OneSignal integration 
exists on the web portal 
to cater push 
notifications to 
subscribed audience. 
b. Active subscribers: 
10,000+ 
 

Please suggest the user 
concurrency per second. 

Query unclear 

5 CBIC Bonded Manufacturing 
Application 
 
a. CBIC applications were 
created to cater the 
requirements of the CBIC team, 
so that end users can obtain 
licenses from the same. Some of 
the highlighted 
features of this application are: 
 
In order to suffice similar 
application building capabilities, 
we would suggest the CMS 
platform to habe built in drag and 
drop Form Builder & Workflows 
so that complex, dynamic and 
multilingual forms can be 
created by just GUI. 
 
This is another suggestion to 
encourage the department to 
allow other CMS platforms to be 
proposed. 

Yes, bidders can propose other digital experience 
platforms/cms platforms other than Drupal. 
 
However, a complete plan to migrate to new 
technology along with parallel delivery of items listed 
‘Tentative Delivery Schedule’ (especially first 3 
months) is expected as part of the technical proposal. 
 
No additional cost shall be borne by Invest India for 
migration of content management systems. Further, 
Invest India reserves discretion to accept/reject 
proposed such migration activities. 
 

6 The selected vendor will be 
required to take over the 
management of the existing 
Invest India web portal and its 
digital initiatives on an “as is and 
where is‟ basis and 
simultaneously develop 
additional modules/ features 
with improved facilities and 
functionalities in mutual 
discussions with Invest India for 
the complete duration of 
Contract. 

● Drupal based application running on ECS 
instances 

● Frontend+backend cluster 
● Three environments for this application - 

DEV/UAT/PROD 
● MySQL RDS instance 
● Jenkins server used for deployments 
● Deployments are handled by the development 

team themselves 
 
Detailed infrastructure shall be shared with selected 
bidder post completion of the RfP process. 



 
Please provide details on the 
existing infrastrcuture set-up 

7 Detailed Scope of Work 
 
Is the expectation is to have a 
complete revamp of the existing 
site and microsites or to continue 
the change requests and 
management of already 
developed sites? Please 
confirm. 

Enhancement/change requests and management of 
already developed sites is required. 
 
For example: Design revamp of the homepage, sector 
page template, etc. which will include addition of new 
pane/sections and removal of unnecessary 
pane/sections. 

8 

Tentative schedule for 
completing the assignment 
 
Please suggest if Disaster 
Recovery is required. If yes, 
please specify what compute wrt 
DC. 

EC2 and RDS Production Environment backups are 
being taken through AWS Backup Service and RDS 
Automated Backups. There are different backup 
policies setup like daily, weekly and monthly for EC2 
Instances. 
 

● Daily backups are retained for 7 Days. 
● Weekly Backups are retained for 4 Weeks. 
● Monthly Backups are retained for 1 Year. 

 

 
 
 
Agency 5 
 

S.No. Query Response 

1 General Query 
 
Can you please specify whether 
vendor is supposed to quote 
based on Fixed scope or based 
on Time and material basis ( 
Where billing will be done based 
on resources time consumed)  ? 
if this tender will be on T&M 
Model please share list of "Fixed 
Resources" required in this 
project . 
 
If this tender will be on a fixed 
scope I request to elaborate 
scope and kindly consider any 

The engagement is Time & Material based. 
 
The Bidder is supposed to provide the lumpsum cost 
for the entire period of 1 year which will act as the 
ceiling amount. Payments shall be done on a monthly 
basis on the basis of FTE cost provided in ‘Breakup 
(Part B)’ of quotation. Monthly work done reports will 
be used as reference for the actual FTE employed 
and payments will be made accordingly. 
 
 



modification to be a part of the 
change order 

2 The 1 year lumpsum cost shall 
form the ceiling amount for this 
RFP 
 
Q1. what happens if resource 
utilization is above 15 resources 
per month for an entire year? 
How Vendor should claim bill 
against additional resources? 
 
Q2. Can Invest India ask 
vendors to increase the number 
of resources required based on 
requirements and workload? 

1. 
Utilization above 15 resources is not expected in the 
project. Payment will be made on a monthly basis and 
on actual utilization of resources. The 1 year lumpsum 
cost shall form the ceiling amount for this RFP. 
 
Team utilization/size is prerogative of Invest India. 
Team size may be increased or decreased. Impact on 
monthly billing (increase/decrease) on lumpsum price 
quoted will be on the basis of FTE cost provided in 
‘Breakup (Part B)’ of quotation. Monthly work done 
reports will be used as reference for the actual FTE 
employed. However Invest India under no 
circumstances will pay more than the ceiling cost 
unless there will be an extension in scope of work over 
and above as mentioned in the bid document. 
 
 
2. 
Yes 

3 The vendor shall be required to 
maintain & update the current 
technology stack along with (in 
consultation with Invest India) 
implement any new technology 
required for improving the 
performance/experience of the 
website 
 
-With regards to update the 
current technology stack we 
believe the update will be done 
to the most recent version of the 
same technology (For example - 
Drupal 8.8.1 to Drupal 10), 
please confirm. 

Yes, the selected bidder is expected to run analysis 
such as SWOT on new technologies and 
recommend/consult/discuss them with Invest India for 
approval. 

4 Newsletter Subscription 
Functionality (database stored 
within the CMS for now) 
 
Can you specify future 
expectation ( if any) ? 

The selected bidder is expected to automate the user 
newsletter-subscribe journey 
(subscribe/unsubscribe/set-preferences/edit-
preferences/etc). 



5 

The content teams (knowledge 
partners) are not HTML trained. 
 
Can you please specify is there 
any specific need of the content 
team to know about HTML and if 
yes what is expectation from 
vendor ? 

The content on the website is managed by knowledge 
experts (consultants) who are not HTML trained or IT 
professionals. 
 
The selected bidder is expected to provide seamless 
CMS (functionalities/editing capabilities) that doesn’t 
require any technical training to manage/add/delete 
website content. 
 
In future, if required, a content manager may be 
onboarded for management of website content as 
described under ‘Tentative Team Structure To Be 
Deployed’ of Scope of Work. 

6 FAQs Rating is a feature which 
enables the end user (visitors) to 
rate any of the 
questions/Answers mentioned in 
FAQs in order to make them 
better in terms of user 
experience. 
 
Is there any Integration of FAQ 
section and Chatbot or what is 
future expectation for 
improvement of FAQ section ? 

The integration of the FAQs section and ChatBot is 
ready to be enabled. The selected bidder is expected 
to test the mapping and activate the feature. 

7 "ii. Admin Team: 1. Applications 
Dashboard 2. Retrieve 
Applications 3. Export 4. Admin 
Logins with appropriate rights 
and security 5. 
Approvals/Rejections/Further 
information required" 
 
can you please specify which 
platform/technology has been 
used for dashboard ? 

Custom development (Drupal based) 

8 "3rd Party API integration 
(Dynamics365, Twitter, 
YouTube, etc.) a. Event APIs: 
This features caters the 
requirement of mapping Invest 
India backend with Dynamics 
365 CRM in terms of Events 
Publishing/Unpublishing, 
Changes, directly from 
Dynamics CRM. API's were 

Query unclear. 
 
The current integrations include- Dynamics365, 
Twitter, YouTube, OneSignal, Livestorm, WebEx, 
Currency Converter, Email Octopus, Linkedin Insight, 
Google Tag Manager, Google Analytics, etc. 
  
The selected bidder is expected to provide support in 
adding/removing/managing 3rd party API integration 
as per the project needs. 



created and integrated with 
Invest India Backend and CRM." 
 
Apart from Microsoft 
Dynamucs365, is there any 
current Integration running with 
Youtube,twitter etc , can please 
specify future expectation ? 

9 

Google Web Vitals (partial 
implementation complete) 
 
Can you please share details 
about partial implementation and 
what is expectation from vendor 
for Integration ? 

The metrics that make up Google Web Vitals keep 
evolving over time. The current set for 2020 focuses 
on three aspects of the user experience—loading, 
interactivity, and visual stability. 
 
The selected bidder is expected to follow Google Web 
Vitals guidelines during redevelopment or creation of 
new pages/templates on the website and ensure high 
performance of the website. 

10 "1. Project Management (Onsite) 
2. Drupal based development 3. 
Front-end development 4. Back-
end development 5. User 
Experience development 
(UX/UI/Graphics/Motion) 6. 
Quality Assurance 7. Search 
Engine Optimisation (SEO) 8. 
Analytics 9. 
DevOps/Infrastructure activities 
10. AI/ML 11. Cybersecurity 12. 
Business Analysis 13. Mobile 
applications development" 
 
-The specified areas mentions 
Ai/ML development and mobile 
application development, 
however the scope of work 
document does not detail out the 
scope of work around it, please 
share detailed scope of work 
around these areas. 
-We believe only project 
manager is needed on site 
however the development can 
be done form development 
center of the vendor, please 
confirm 

1. Tentative schedule of deliverables has been 
provided as part of Scope of Work. For now, 
priority/focus on AI/ML and mobile 
applications is low. 
 

2. Travel to Invest India office required for 
Project Manager on a regular/daily basis. For 
the rest of the team (especially designers, 
analytics, & SEO experts), travel to the Invest 
India office is required on a need basis. 

11 The selected vendor will be 
required to take over the 

Please refer to Tentative schedule for completing the 
assignment under ‘Scope of Work’ 



management of the existing 
Invest India web portal and its 
digital initiatives on an “as is and 
where is‟ basis and 
simultaneously develop 
additional modules/ features 
with improved facilities and 
functionalities in mutual 
discussions with Invest India for 
the complete duration of 
contract. The selected vendor 
shall be responsible for the web 
portal as well as all the 
current/future microsites 
managed by the Invest India 
team. 
 
-Please help us understand, at 
this point in time on what 
parameters/details should we 
scope in the additional 
modules/features? 
-Can you please explian context 
of "as is and where is " as 
mentioned in point ? 

 
As is and where it means acceptance of the website 
in its current condition. Anything that is broken (code) 
will either have to be fixed or redeveloped. 

12 The vendor shall ensure that the 
Web Portal is easily viewable 
from a desktop, tablet, or mobile 
device of any manufacturer. The 
user experience should be 
similar across all devices, 
allowing for differences in device 
layouts or requirements. The 
Web Portal should have mobile 
responsive features, auto 
adjusted based on its access 
across mobile devices, desktop / 
laptop and it should be 
interactive and responsive 
across all platforms without any 
limitations 
 
-Since the existing web portal is 
already responsive (for mobile 
screens) as per the given details, 
what additionally is the 
expectation here from the 
vendor? Are there some pages 
or sections of the website which 

The selected bidder is expected to 
advise/recommend improvement areas in the existing 
website for mobile/tablet screens and continuously 
enhance overall user experience. 
 



is not tablet and mobile 
responsive? If yes please 
specify those areas. 

13 

The selected vendor must be 
aware that this will be a highly 
dynamic Web Portal and will 
have constant updates to its 
various modules. 
 
will changes to be counted as a 
change order ? 

Dedicated team on the project is expected to carry out 
all activities. 
 
Utilization above 15 resources is not expected in the 
project. Payment will be made on a monthly basis and 
on actual utilization of resources. The 1 year lumpsum 
cost shall form the ceiling amount for this RFP. 
 
Team utilization/size is prerogative of Invest India. 
Team size may be increased or decreased. Impact on 
monthly billing (increase/decrease) on lumpsum price 
quoted will be on the basis of FTE cost provided in 
‘Breakup (Part B)’ of quotation. Monthly work done 
reports will be used as reference for the actual FTE 
employed. However Invest India under no 
circumstances will pay more than the ceiling cost 
unless there will be an extension in scope of work over 
and above as mentioned in the bid document. 
 
‘Changes’ will not be counted as a change order.  
 

14 The vendor shall ensure that the 
Web Portal is compatible with all 
common web browsers and 
operating system on PC, Mobile, 
and tab platforms like Internet 
Explorer 6.0 and above, Mozilla 
Firefox 1.5 and above, Safari 2 
and above, Netscape 7 and 
above, Mobile Safari 19 (iOS), 
Chrome OS, latest stable 
Android Browser for Android 
mobile device, default IE for 
Windows mobile device and 
default Safari browser for Apple 
iOS. 
 
-Is the existing web portal 
supported over the mentored 
browsers versions? 

Yes 

15 The vendor shall provide hosting 
solutions & recommendations 
which are in accordance with the 
GIGW guidelines 

Query Unclear. 
 
The web portal currently doesn’t allow users to 
register and login functionality to the public. 



 
Please specify the following 
 -Total number of 
concurrent users on the platform 
 -Should we include High 
Availability (HA) and Disaster 
Recovery (DR) 
 -Ballpark size of data  
 -Hosting on cloud service 
providers such as AWS is 
acceptable? 
     

 
The selected bidder shall provide 
DevOps/deployment/utilization of services on AWS. 
All billing and subscription costs for AWS will be borne 
by the Invest India Team. 
 

16 The vendor shall ensure that the 
Web Portal response time is not 
more than 6000 milliseconds 
(especially for new 
templates/web pages developed 
by the agency). 
 
-Please share the performance 
report of the existing web portal 

Query unclear. Invest India web portal has monthly 
active users of around 2.5 Lacs with around 5 Lacs 
unique page views monthly. With 20+ daily updates 
on the website, Invest India web portal is one of the 
most updated IPA websites globally. 
 
Link for reference: https://pagespeed.web.dev/ 

17 

For new features identified or to 
be added onto the Invest India 
Web Portal, a detailed work-flow 
and FRS (Functional 
Requirement Specification) will 
need to be approved in 
consultation with Invest India 
before going live. Appropriate 
timelines will be set per mutual 
discussions between Invest 
India and the vendor for 
introduction of new modules into 
the system. 
 
will changes to be counted as a 
change order ? 

Dedicated team on the project is expected to carry out 
all activities. 
 
Utilization above 15 resources is not expected in the 
project. Payment will be made on a monthly basis and 
on actual utilization of resources. The 1 year lumpsum 
cost shall form the ceiling amount for this RFP. 
 
Team utilization/size is prerogative of Invest India. 
Team size may be increased or decreased. Impact on 
monthly billing (increase/decrease) on lumpsum price 
quoted will be on the basis of FTE cost provided in 
‘Breakup (Part B)’ of quotation. Monthly work done 
reports will be used as reference for the actual FTE 
employed. However Invest India under no 
circumstances will pay more than the ceiling cost 
unless there will be an extension in scope of work over 
and above as mentioned in the bid document. 
 
‘Changes’ will not be counted as a change order. 

18 "The vendor must ensure a 
detailed knowledge and data 
hand-over/ transfer at least 2 
months prior to completion/ 
termination of the project at no 
extra cost. Further, the vendor 

Dedicated support is not required post completion of 
the project. Only consultative/ad-hoc support is 
required to tackle any operational issue faced by the 
new vendor. 



must also ensure that if required 
2 months of additional support 
post handover to the new vendor 
is provided in case of any 
operational issues faced in the 
project at no extra cost. " 
 
Post completion of project, 
during 2 month supports, how 
many expected resources 
needed for support to the new 
vendor? 

19 "The vendor shall ensure that 
the Web Portal is hosted using 
secured SSL Certificate (min 
256-bit encryption) with 
extended validation during the 
entire contract period." 
 
Please specify who will be 
responsible for paying SSL 
Certificate ? 

The selected bidder shall ensure that the Web Portal 
is hosted using secured SSL Certificate (min 256-bit 
encryption) with extended validation during the entire 
contract period. 
 
Invest India will bear the cost of procuring the SSL 
certificate. 

20 

Any changes in the modules 
(major or minor) including 
changes due to Government of 
India or any statutory authority 
shall be done at no additional 
cost to Invest India. 
 
will changes to be counted as a 
change order ? 

Dedicated team on the project is expected to carry out 
all activities. 
 
Utilization above 15 resources is not expected in the 
project. Payment will be made on a monthly basis and 
on actual utilization of resources. The 1 year lumpsum 
cost shall form the ceiling amount for this RFP. 
 
Team utilization/size is prerogative of Invest India. 
Team size may be increased or decreased. Impact on 
monthly billing (increase/decrease) on lumpsum price 
quoted will be on the basis of FTE cost provided in 
‘Breakup (Part B)’ of quotation. Monthly work done 
reports will be used as reference for the actual FTE 
employed. However Invest India under no 
circumstances will pay more than the ceiling cost 
unless there will be an extension in scope of work over 
and above as mentioned in the bid document. 
 
‘Changes’ will not be counted as a change order. 
 

21 The vendor shall provide 24 x 7 
technical support and 
maintenance of all the dynamic 
components of the Web Portal. 

No, additional support staff is not required. Dedicated 
team on the project is expected to carry out all 
activities. 



During the normal course of the 
project, support shall be 
provided during working hours of 
the team. At times, extended 
support may be required on a 
case-to-case basis (especially 
during deployments, new 
launches, addition of special 
features, site-failure, etc.). 
 
we believe there is no additional 
support staff required specially 
for support and any extended 
support shall be counted as a 
change request ? Please specify 

22 The Web Portal also has the 
capability for third-party 
application integration through 
API. Vendors shall support such 
third party integrations. 
 
Please share list of all 3rd party 
to be integrated along with API 
documentation 

Existing integrations include Dynamics365, Google 
Analytics, One-signal, indiainvestmentgrid.gov.in.  
 
Currently, there is no pending 3rd party integration. 

23 The vendor shall enhance the 
current capabilities of the 
chatbot via integrations with 3rd 
party APIs such as website 
FAQs, Whatsapp, and generate 
more leads. 
 
-Please specify the current 
problems and enhancement 
areas in the existing chatbot 
module 

The current chatbot, on mobile, leads to a new tab on 
the browser. This breaks the user experience and we 
intend to fix it. The user journey (responses) need to 
be revised. The FAQs available on the Invest India 
website needs to be integrated with the ChatBot. 
 
We are also exploring the ChatBot integration with 
WhatsApp for maximizing outreach.  

24 Invest India Web Portal will also 
have real time integration with all 
popular social media platforms 
including the social media 
platforms integrated with the 
existing website. The feed from 
social media handles of Invest 
India handles and other 
accounts as may be informed by 
Invest India shall be pulled from 
these platforms and made 
available on the website. 

Embedded live feeds to be displayed wherever 
required 



 
Can you please list and detail out 
the integration required from the 
social media site ? 

25 The vendor must ensure a 
detailed knowledge and data 
hand-over/ transfer at least 2 
months prior to completion/ 
termination of the project at no 
extra cost. Further, the vendor 
must also ensure that if required 
2 months of additional support 
post handover to the new vendor 
is provided in case of any 
operational issues faced in the 
project at no extra cost 
 
in such case shall we consider a 
fixed support of 2 months after 
completion of the project 
duration ? 

Dedicated support is not required post completion of 
the project. Only consultative/ad-hoc support is 
required to tackle any operational issue faced by the 
new vendor. 
 

26 The vendor shall be responsible 
for project management of all 
Invest India online/digital 
initiatives, whether the 
development is done by the 
vendor's team or any third party 
(in the past). 
 
Can you please list down all the 
initiatives of Invest india where 
project management is required 
outside the scope of work of 
vendor ? It will help us identify 
scope of project management 
outside our scope 

Refer to Scope of Work (Tentative schedule for 
completing the assignment; pt. 2) for list of projects. 
 
For now, only handover of the projects is required.  
 
Since it is a T&M/Retainership model, we would 
allocate resources to the project (other than Invest 
India) only if any urgent need arises. 
 
 

27 

The vendor shall support in 
integrating Data Visualizations 
tools for interactive, immersive 
dashboards, maps, and reports 
that provide actionable insights. 
 
we believe licence cost of any 
such tool shall be in scope of 
Invest india , please specify ? 

The selected bidder shall not be permitted to charge 
any separate fee for utilizing or deploying any 
software/tools/ licenses (VB, MS Office, JIRA etc.) 
obtained from any third party or any proprietary 
software in performance of the services under the 
project. 
 
However, for any new functionality implementation 
that may require procurement of 3rd party 
tools/services such as ‘HubSpot’, etc. The selected 
bidder is expected to recommend such tools/services. 



Basis evaluation of the required tool/service by Invest 
India, the procurement shall be directly done by Invest 
India. 

28 Invest India reserves the right to 
increase/decrease the above 
listed Scope of Work as & when 
required based on business 
requirements. 
 
Since this is a fixed budget 
project any increment in the 
scope of work shall be treated as 
a Change Request, please 
confirm 

Dedicated team on the project is expected to carry out 
all activities. 
 
Utilization above 15 resources is not expected in the 
project. Payment will be made on a monthly basis and 
on actual utilization of resources. The 1 year lumpsum 
cost shall form the ceiling amount for this RFP. 
 
Team utilization/size is prerogative of Invest India. 
Team size may be increased or decreased. Impact on 
monthly billing (increase/decrease) on lumpsum price 
quoted will be on the basis of FTE cost provided in 
‘Breakup (Part B)’ of quotation. Monthly work done 
reports will be used as reference for the actual FTE 
employed. However Invest India under no 
circumstances will pay more than the ceiling cost 
unless there will be an extension in scope of work over 
and above as mentioned in the bid document. 
 
‘Changes’ will not be counted as a change order. 

29 "Fixing of open bugs and 
backend enhancements a. 
Resolution of existing bugs (15+ 
bugs) reported on priority for 
smooth functioning of the 
website such as, Defining and 
standardizing Decimal/thousand 
b. Separators, Numerical 
lengths, Image sizes, format of 
images/documents across all 
pages on the website c. 
Providing shortcuts/hyperlinks in 
the drupal-backend to access to 
all items that are currently 
accessible only via hyperlink and 
other general enhancements d. 
Translations: Fixing translated 
versions of the website that are 
not reflecting in the front end" 
 
-Please share bug description 
and number of pages impacted 
for other mentioned points 

List of bugs will be provided to the selected bidder. 
Maximum bugs are page/template level and very easy 
to understand. 
 
For example: 

1. File upload extension rule not working 
(.pdf/.ppt/.pptx documents only) and users are 
able to upload files with any extension. 

2. Image file not loading 



30 Takeover multiple Invest India 
digital initiatives/projects to 
ensure stable operations, 
99.99% uptime and regular 
maintenance including creation 
of delivery pipeline for 
development, UAT and 
production: 
 
-For websites with the 
expectation of "Regular Design 
& Development Required", how 
do we the scope of design and 
development? 
 
-For websites with the 
expectation of "Only Handover 
Required", what is the 
expectation here? 

For websites with the expectation of "Regular Design 
& Development Required", please refer to the 
‘Detailed scope of work’ along with ‘Tentative 
schedule for completing the assignment’. 
 
The engagement is Time & Material based. We would 
allocate resources to the project (other than Invest 
India) only if any urgent need arises. 
 
For now, only handover of the other projects is 
required. 
 
 
 

31 

Invest India reserves the right to 
increase/decrease the above 
listed Scope of Work as & when 
required based on business 
requirements 
 
will any changes in scope be 
counted as change order ? 

Dedicated team on the project is expected to carry out 
all activities. 
 
Utilization above 15 resources is not expected in the 
project. Payment will be made on a monthly basis and 
on actual utilization of resources. The 1 year lumpsum 
cost shall form the ceiling amount for this RFP. 
 
Team utilization/size is prerogative of Invest India. 
Team size may be increased or decreased. Impact on 
monthly billing (increase/decrease) on lumpsum price 
quoted will be on the basis of FTE cost provided in 
‘Breakup (Part B)’ of quotation. Monthly work done 
reports will be used as reference for the actual FTE 
employed. However Invest India under no 
circumstances will pay more than the ceiling cost 
unless there will be an extension in scope of work over 
and above as mentioned in the bid document. 
 
‘Change’ in scope will not be counted as change 
order. 

32 

It is listed down name of all 
website and portal 
 
Can you please specify scope 
under "Regular Design and 
development " of each portal ? 

For websites with the expectation of "Regular Design 
& Development Required", please refer to the 
‘Detailed scope of work’ along with ‘Tentative 
schedule for completing the assignment’. 
 
The engagement is Time & Material based. We would 
allocate resources to the project (other than Invest 
India) only if any urgent need arises. 



 - Can you also specify scope 
under "Only Handover 
Required" ? 

 
For now, only handover of the other projects is 
required. 
 
 

33 1. Benchmarking IPAs: Evaluate 
existing ecosystem and 
benchmark with the leading IPAs 
website such as EDB Singapore, 
KOTRA, IDA Ireland, CINDE 
Invest in Costa Rica, Invest 
Hong Kong and Germany Trade 
and Invest (GTAI) to leverage 
website analytics, identify 
features and suggest 
improvement areas/ 
enhancements. 
 
We believe this part only 
contains suggestion but not the 
development , development will 
be counted as a additional scope 
of work ? 

No, development will not be counted as additional 
scope of work. The selected bidder is expected to 
conduct regular market surveys, identify, and suggest 
improvement areas (in terms of technical features, 
content buckets, etc) to Invest India. 
 
The engagement is Time & Material based. 
 
 

34 5. Team Page: Develop unique 
URLs for individual profiles and 
automation to generate QR code 
 
Can you please explain in detail 
on the automation of QR code 
generation ? 

The selected bidder is expected to provide a solution 
to automatically generate QR codes that can link back 
to employee profiles available on the website. 
 
These QR codes shall be utilised in employee-id-card 
and may serve as an employee-verification medium 
during security checks. 

35 

6. Chatbot improvement and 
revision of existing information 
flow (+ display of FAQs on 
Chatbot- Mapping pending) 
 
Can you please specify 
improvements required in 
chatbot ? 

The integration of the FAQs section and ChatBot is 
ready to be enabled. The selected bidder is expected 
to activate the same and test the mapping. 
 
 
The current chatbot, on mobile, leads to a new tab on 
the browser. This breaks the user experience and we 
intend to fix it. The user journey (responses) need to 
be revised. The FAQs available on the Invest India 
website needs to be integrated with the ChatBot. 
 
We are also exploring the ChatBot integration with 
WhatsApp for maximizing outreach. 
 



36 

13. Development and designing 
of new webpages/initiatives as 
and when requested by the client 
 
we believe all changes shall be 
part of change order , if not 
please specify how we should 
scope out additional changes at 
this stage ? 

Dedicated team on the project is expected to carry out 
all activities. 
 
Utilization above 15 resources is not expected in the 
project. Payment will be made on a monthly basis and 
on actual utilization of resources. The 1 year lumpsum 
cost shall form the ceiling amount for this RFP. 
 
Team utilization/size is prerogative of Invest India. 
Team size may be increased or decreased. Impact on 
monthly billing (increase/decrease) on lumpsum price 
quoted will be on the basis of FTE cost provided in 
‘Breakup (Part B)’ of quotation. Monthly work done 
reports will be used as reference for the actual FTE 
employed. However Invest India under no 
circumstances will pay more than the ceiling cost 
unless there will be an extension in scope of work over 
and above as mentioned in the bid document. 
 
‘Change’ in scope will not be counted as change 
order. Please refer to the ‘Detailed scope of work’ 
along with ‘Tentative schedule for completing the 
assignment’. 

37 

"4. Automation of the following 
sections to reduce manual 
interventions: a. Events b. 
Achievement Counters c. Latest 
Updates d. Translations" 
 
Can you please detail out the 
automation required in each of 
the points mentioned ? 

The target is to enhance the functioning of multiple 
sections on the website & reduce manual intervention.  
 
For example: Addition of team members/employees 
on ‘Invest India Team’ page vs ‘Country’ pages are 
done manually and individually. The profile of each 
employee should be added once on the website and 
profile mapping functionality should be available on 
rest of the pages (sharing this particular module).  
 
Similarly, other sections on the website requires 
automation/enhancement. 

 
 
 
Agency: Infoneo Technologies 
 

S.No. Query Response 

1 1.  As per Scope of Work page 
No 05, you required Project 
Management(onsite). Please 
clarify the same and also let us 
know the frequency of sending 

Travel to Invest India office required for Project 
Manager on a regular/daily basis. 
 
For the rest of the team (especially designers, 
analytics, & SEO experts), travel to the Invest India 



the project Manager at your 
good office in a month. 

office is required on a need basis. 

2 2. As per scope of work, Mobile 
Application development also 
includes - Please clarify that a 
bidder has to develop android 
and ios both? 

Tentative schedule of deliverables has been provided 
as part of Scope of Work. For now, priority/focus on 
AI/ML and mobile applications is low. Incase we 
develop a mobile application, both Android and iOS 
will be required. 

 
Agency 6 
 

S.No. Query Response 

1 "The Bidder should have 
Experience of development, 
maintenance and operation of 
minimum 3 large scale websites 
Implemented 1 similar work (in 
line with scope of work) with 
project value not less than 3.5 Cr 
in the last 3 years as on the last 
date of bid submission" 
 
Need some relaxation in this. 
Please explain about large scale 
website  

1. No change 
2. A website is said to be large-scale when it 

meets certain characteristics such as high 
number of visitors, a high number of 
transactions if it is an online shop, or a large 
amount of published data. 

2 Availability of Services (Web 
Portal) 
 
Down time is depends on the 
Server hosted on the penalty is 
on vendor ? 
Please explain 

Query Unclear. Incase a downtime occurs due to error 
in the codefile or a built fails on production, a penalty 
shall be applicable. 

3 Manpower Resource & SoW 
both defined 
 
Pricing will be quoted on basis of 
Manpower or Scope of Work? 

The engagement is Time & Material based. 
 
 

4 "Chatbot improvement and 
revision of existing information 
flow (+ display of FAQs on 
Chatbot- Mapping pending)" 
 
Chatbot will be dynamic AI 
based or Static? 

In the long run, the chatbot will be dynamic AI based. 



5 "The selected vendor must be 
aware that this will be a highly 
dynamic Web Portal and will 
have constant updates to its 
various modules." 
 
Total Number of Modules? 
(Approx.) 

Six 

6 
After the project completion, 
Number of resource required 
and their allocation? 
As per current requirement its 15 
whats their role after that? 

Query unclear. Project duration is 1 year. 
 
Dedicated support is not required post completion of 
the project. Only consultative/ad-hoc support is 
required to tackle any operational issue faced by the 
new vendor. 

7 Payment term can be 
determined by: 
1.SRS 
2.Prototype 
3.UAT Sign Off 
4.GoLive 

Query unclear 

8 

If the Project will be given in 
hybrid mode then how the 
responsibility of project will be 
taken care off? 

The engagement is Time & Material based. 
 
The selected bidder will be solely responsible for 
successful implementation of the project. Travel to 
Invest India office required for Project Manager on a 
regular/daily basis. For the rest of the team (especially 
designers, analytics, & SEO experts), travel to the 
Invest India office is required on a need basis. 

9 

Operation & Maintenance will be 
of how much time? 

No additional support staff is required for Operation & 
Maintenance. Dedicated team on the project is 
expected to carry out all activities. 
 
Post completion of the project, only consultative/ad-
hoc support is required to tackle any operational issue 
faced by the new vendor. 

10 

What will be selection creatia of 
agency? 

The Agency will be selected on a QCBS criteria - 
70:30 – Technical: Financial.  
 
Bidders who qualify the Pre-qualification Criteria go 
into Technical Evaluation where a minimum of 70 
marks is required to go into Financial Evaluation and 
finally basis the scores in technical and financial 
evaluation combined score is calculated on a QCBS 
criteria - 70:30 – Technical: Financial. 

 



 
Agency 7 
 

S.No. Query Response 

1 Invest India is looking for a 
technology partner for 
designing, development, 
hosting, and management of its 
flagship domain: 
www.investindia.gov.in and 
other digital initiatives. 
 
Request for Clarification: 
 
We need to manage the 
operations & maintenance part 
only? What are other digital 
initiatives? What are new 
developments? 

Query unclear. Please refer to ‘Detailed Scope of 
Work’ and ‘Tentative Delivery Schedule’. 

2 
The content teams (knowledge 
partners) are not HTML trained. 
 
Request for Clarification: 
 
Who will manage their work? 

The content on the website is managed by knowledge 
experts (consultants) who are not HTML trained or IT 
professionals. 
 
The selected bidder is expected to provide seamless 
CMS (functionalities/editing capabilities) that doesn’t 
require any technical training to manage/add/delete 
website content. 

3 This feature enables the Invest 
India team to host Webinars on 
Invest India platform, integration 
with 3rd party webinar hosting 
platform (Webex), Registration 
Page, Login Credentials Mails, 
Feedback Forms, Mass 
emailers. 
 
Request for Clarification: 
 
Only webx? 

Webex + Livestrom. However, this feature is currently 
inactive and doesn't require redevelopment in the 
near future. 

4 The selected vendor shall be 
responsible for the web portal as 
well as all the current/future 
microsites managed by the 
Invest India team. 
 
Request for Clarification: 

The selected bidder is expected to assess and 
recommend reliable and faster tech stack for 
current/future microsites managed by the Invest India 
team. 
 
Currently, most of the websites/microsites are Drupal 
based. 



 
What will be the future websites 
& tech stack? 

5 Project Management (Onsite) 
 
Request for Clarification: 
 
We are assuming 1 manpower 
with the required skills. Do you 
need a full-time PM in your 
office? 

Travel to Invest India office required for Project 
Manager on a regular/daily basis. For the rest of the 
team (especially designers, analytics, & SEO 
experts), travel to the Invest India office is required on 
a need basis. 

6 Mobile applications 
development 
 
Request for Clarification: 
 
Please explain more? 

Tentative schedule of deliverables has been provided 
as part of Scope of Work. For now, priority/focus on 
AI/ML and mobile applications is low. 

7 

The vendor may be responsible 
for payment to cloud or SAAS 
service for which the vendor 
shall be reimbursed at actual 
and discount offered by vendor 
 
Request for Change: 
 
All additional costs should be 
under the II team. 

The selected bidder shall not be permitted to charge 
any separate fee for utilizing or deploying any 
software/tools/ licenses (VB, MS Office, JIRA etc.) 
obtained from any third party or any proprietary 
software in performance of the services under the 
project. 
 
However, for any new functionality implementation 
that may require procurement of 3rd party 
tools/services such as ‘HubSpot’, etc. The selected 
bidder is expected to recommend such tools/services. 
Basis evaluation of the required tool/service by Invest 
India, the procurement shall be directly done by Invest 
India. 

8 Takeover multiple Invest India 
digital initiatives/projects to 
ensure stable operations, 
99.99% uptime and regular 
maintenance including creation 
of delivery pipeline for 
development, UAT and 
production: 
 
Request for Clarification: 
 
Some websites are showing (Not 
live) only handover. Do you 
require any development during 
the contract period? 

For now, only handover of the projects is required. 
 
Since it is a T&M model, we would allocate resources 
to the project (other than Invest India) only if any 
urgent need arises. 
 
 



9 Team Page: Develop unique 
URLs for individual profiles and 
automation to generate QR code 
 
Request for Clarification: 
 
Please explain more? 

The selected bidder is expected to provide a solution 
to automatically generate QR codes that can link back 
to employee profiles available on the website. 
 
These QR codes shall be utilised in employee-id-card 
and may serve as an employee-verification medium 
during security checks. 

10 Designing, development and 
deployment of high quality, error-
free custom coded HTML 
emailers/newsletters as per the 
requirement (as & when 
required) 
 
Request for Clarification: 
 
Please explain more? 

The selected bidder is expected to design, develop 
and deploy Invest India emailers/newsletters as & 
when required. 
 
For example: Invest India Monthly Newsletter 

11 Why India 2.0 – Design & 
development of a page for 
comparative analysis across the 
globe to showcase “Why only 
India” 
 
Request for Clarification: 
 
Please explain more? It's a new 
development? Content is ready? 

For Why India 2.0 page, we want to redesign the web 
page and add more information to it. The content for 
Why India 2.0 page will be provided to the design 
team. 

12 

Chatbot integration (Phase 1 
only) with Whatsapp Business 
for a quick response on 
frequently asked questions and 
generate more leads (mapping 
with query form) 
 
Request for Clarification: 
 
Who will bear cost for WA 
integration? 

The selected bidder shall not be permitted to charge 
any separate fee for utilizing or deploying any 
software/tools/ licenses (VB, MS Office, JIRA etc.) 
obtained from any third party or any proprietary 
software in performance of the services under the 
project. 
 
However, for any new functionality implementation 
that may require procurement of 3rd party 
tools/services such as ‘HubSpot’, ‘WhatsApp’ etc. The 
selected bidder is expected to recommend such 
tools/services. Basis evaluation of the required 
tool/service by Invest India, the procurement shall be 
directly done by Invest India. 

13 Request for Clarification: 
 
Who will bear the cost for 
hosting, SSL, security audit, and 
other tools? 

The selected bidder shall ensure that the Web Portal 
is hosted using secured SSL Certificate (min 256-bit 
encryption) with extended validation during the entire 
contract period. 
 



Invest India will bear the cost of procuring the SSL 
certificate. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


